
   

Chief Executive Officer 
Louis Ward, MHA 

Mayers Memorial Hospital District 

Board of Directors 
Beatriz Vasquez, PhD, President 
Abe Hathaway, Vice President 

Laura Beyer, Secretary 
Allen Albaugh, Treasurer 
Jeanne Utterback, Director 

 
 

 
P.O. Box 459 – 43563 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills, CA 96028 Tel. (530) 336-5511 Fax (530) 336-6199  http://www.mayersmemorial.com  

 

 

 

 

  

           

 

 

 

 
1 CALL MEETING TO ORDER: Board Chair Beatriz Vasquez called the meeting to order at 12:01pm on the above date. 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: STAFF PRESENT: 

Laura Beyer, Secretary 
Jeanne Utterback, Director 

 

Louis Ward, CEO 
Jack Hathaway, DOQ 

Ryan Harris, DOO 
Candy Vculek, CNO 
Keith Earnest, CCO 

Susan Garcia, Dietary 
Alex Johnson, Maintenance 

Steve Sweet, Purchasing 
JD Phipps, D of ED and Ancillary Services (via phone) 

Pam Sweet, Board Clerk 

ABSENT: 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
 

Susan Knoch, MVHC 

2 CALL FOR REQUEST FROM THE AUDIENCE – PUBLIC COMMENTS OR TO SPEAK TO AGENDA ITEMS 
 None 

 

3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
 3.1 A motion/second carried; committee members accepted the minutes of February 12, 2019 

 
Utterback/Beyer Approved All 

4 DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

 4.1 Pharmacy 

 Report attached 

 Pharmaceutical labeling in the ED:  Label is compliant with state law.  Trial was in February and had spotty 
compliance.  Now doing daily audits and JD is following up with the individuals.  Potential impact to patient care 
is the printed expiration date of the drugs. 

 4.2 Dietary 

 2 initiatives – Hand washing and Tray accuracy. 

 Tray Accuracy:  Forms attached.  Tray cards are managed with a Kardex. 
o The Tray Card follows the tray from the kitchen to the patient 
o Have discussed switching to an electronic process.  We tried 1 system that didn’t meet our needs.  

Don’t know if an electronic system would be more efficient. 
 4.3 Maintenance 

 Report attached 

 Staffing is in focus 

Board of Directors 
Quality Committee 

Minutes 
 

March 13, 2019 - 12:00pm 
Boardroom (Fall River Mills) 

These minutes are not intended to be a verbatim transcription of the proceedings and discussions associated with the business of the board’s 
agenda; rather, what follows is a summary of the order of business and general nature of testimony, deliberations and action taken. 

 

Attachment A 
DRAFT 

http://www.mayersmemorial.com/


Public records which relate to any of the matters on this agenda (except Closed Session items), and which have been distributed to the members of the Board, 
are available for public inspection at the office of the Clerk to the Board of Directors, 43563 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills CA 96028. This document and 
other Board of Directors documents are available online at www.mayersmemorial.com. 

 
  P a g e  | 2 

 Did a good job of involving the residents in colors and decoration of their spaces 

 4.4 Personnel  

 Report attached 

 A concern is that applicants were not getting any response to their applications.  Now, every applicant 
gets some sort of contact 

 Working  on building a manager orientation program 

 Travelers and Orientation: 
o 13 week travelers are oriented just like employees.   
o 1-time drop in travelers:  Working with schedulers to orient. 

 Doing pre-assessments on all new staff to determine training needs and learning styles 

 Manager Orientation will be a formal process with more 1 on 1 training.  Now working to assess our 
manager’s current knowledge. 

 4.5 Purchasing  

 Report attached 

 This year, we issued more than 1,600 purchase orders with over 7000 lines. 

 Have streamlined staffing from 7 people to 3 over the last 10 years 
5 QUARTERLY REPORTS   

 5.1 Blood Transfusion 

 Report attached 

 Quarterly reporting is required by State 
o Blood transfusions are risky and getting more so.  The standard keeps tightening up and the state 

wants to make sure we are monitoring 
  Compliance 

 Report attached 
  CMS Core Measures 

 Report attached 
 HCAHPS puts us at 8th in the state inpatient satisfaction and 2nd in cleanliness, but we have a hard time helping 

patients help themselves after they go home. 

 Premier pulls real time data from our EHR and reports to CMS.  Have 1/3 of core measures met. 
6 STANDING MONTHLY REPORTS   
 6.1 Quality/Performance Improvement:   

 RL6 will greatly enhance our Quality Review reporting 
 6.2 PRIME:   

 Reporting is due the 31st of March.  It is going well.  Expect to have the report submitted before it is 
due. 

 6.3 SNF Events/Survey:   

 Shelley is at Director of Nursing training as part of our succession planning 

 An interface between the Lab computer system and PCC has been purchased.  It will resolve communication 
problems between the 2 systems.  Should be installed in the next few months. 

 Fire/Life/Safety Inspection discovered problem with a couple of doors blocked open by bedside tables.  Relias 
training on this subject was distributed to all staff.  Louis gave a short demonstration of the Relias training app. 

 6.4 Infection Control:    

 Coleen is working with a consultant (Margaret) to learn the programs.  Margaret has helped her build a program 
and tracking and reporting.  We now meet state requirements.  Margaret is still available as needed. 

 SNF:  performing McGeer Criteria on all antibiotics.  That means we’re not treating infections that don’t exist. 
o Tracking monthly.  Now at 50% compliance, but improving.  Need to incorporate as part of the culture. 

7 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT:   

 Mental Health:  We are in the process of applying for a grant.  It will be a collaboration with the school district.   
o Plan is to provide free mental health services to students via telemedicine 
o $200,000 per year for 3 years 

http://www.mayersmemorial.com/


Public records which relate to any of the matters on this agenda (except Closed Session items), and which have been distributed to the members of the Board, 
are available for public inspection at the office of the Clerk to the Board of Directors, 43563 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills CA 96028. This document and 
other Board of Directors documents are available online at www.mayersmemorial.com. 

 
  P a g e  | 3 

    

 Employee meetings were very successful.  About 90 people attended 
 Management meetings were also held 
 See attached results of Manager’s quiz.  We have gotten a good idea of what trainings are needed.  For instance, 

Workplace Violence Prevention is an obvious need. 
 Have hired 3 nurses and an NP.  We have offers out to 3 additional nurses 
 Community Meetings:  Have spoken to Hat Creek Fire and Rotary about what’s happening at the hospital.  

Scheduled to talk at McArthur Lions club next week. 
 SEMSA:  in the last stages of contract negotiations 

 Uniforms:  All support departments will be in uniforms by July 1st.  Maintenance is already in uniforms. 
o Ryan is working on a policy to define how and when replacement uniforms are supplied 

  

8 NEW BUSINESS: None 
 

  

9 OTHER INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: None 
 

10 ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION: 
 

  

 10.1 STAFF STATUS CHANGE 
1. Rhett Wiggen, CRNA to Inactive 
 
AHP APPOINTMENT 
1. Kirk Lott, CRNA 
2. Kenneth Childers, CRNA 
3. Erica Haedrich, PA 
4. Thomas Peterson, FNP 

 
MEDICAL STAFF APPOINTMENT 
1. Robert Adams, DO – Emergency Medicine 
2. Aditi Bhaduri, MD – Endocrinology, Telemedicine 
3. Thomas Kurian, MD – Neurology, Telemedicine 
4. Tommy Saborido, MD – Emergency Medicine 
5. Baharak Bagheri, MD – Radiology, Telemedicine 
6. Frank Snyder, MD – Radiology, Telemedicine 
7. Shree Shah, MD – Radiology, Telemedicine 
 
MEDICAL STAFF REAPPOINTMENT 
Michael Dillon – Emergency Medicine 

  

  A motion/second carried; committee members approved all credentials Beyer/Utterback Approved All 
Credentials  

11 RECONVENE OPEN SESSION:   Reported closed session action 
 

  

12 ADJOURNMENT:  2:20 pm - Next Regular Meeting – April 10, 2019 (Fall River Mills) 

http://www.mayersmemorial.com/


1 03/27/2019  

Board Quality Report Template 

Name: 

Department: 

Last Quality project reported: 

Update on last Quality project reported: 

Current report date 
to Board Quality: 

Last report date to 
Board Quality: 

What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects? 

What issues have come up in your department relating to Quality? 

PLAN: What plan was implemented to address those issues? 

Attachment B
Med-Surg/Swing



2 03/27/2019  

DO: How did the implementation of that plan go? 

STUDY: What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield? 

ACT: What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation? 

Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 



3 03/27/2019  

Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 



Board Quality Departmental Report Template 
Last Quality project reported: 

Update on last Quality project reported: 

What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects? 

What issues have come up in your department relating to Quality? 

PLAN: What plan was implemented to address those issues? 

DO: How did the implementation of that plan go? 

STUDY: What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield? 

ACT: What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation? 

1 01/28/2019

Current report date 
to Board Quality: 

Last report date to 
Board Quality: 

Attachment C
Env. Services



Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 

2 01/28/2019



Attachment D
Cardiac Rehab











1 03/27/2019  

Board Quality Report Template 

Name: 

Department: 

Last Quality project reported: 

Update on last Quality project reported: 

Current report date 
to Board Quality: 

Last report date to 
Board Quality: 

What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects? 

What issues have come up in your department relating to Quality? 

PLAN: What plan was implemented to address those issues? 

Attachment E
Imaging



2 03/27/2019  

DO: How did the implementation of that plan go? 

STUDY: What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield? 

ACT: What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation? 

Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 



3 03/27/2019  

Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 



1 03/27/2019  

Board Quality Report Template 

Name: 

Department: 

Last Quality project reported: 

Update on last Quality project reported: 

Current report date 
to Board Quality: 

Last report date to 
Board Quality: 

What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects? 

What issues have come up in your department relating to Quality? 

PLAN: What plan was implemented to address those issues? 

Attachment F
Marketing



2 03/27/2019  

DO: How did the implementation of that plan go? 

STUDY: What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield? 

ACT: What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation? 

Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 



3 03/27/2019  

Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 



Board Quality Report Template 

Name: 

Libby Mee - Director of Human Resources 

Department: 

Human Resources/Work Comp 

Last Quality project reported: 

4th Quarter 2018 Injury/Reportable stats 

2018 in Review Injury/Reportable stats 

CARE Fund 2019 money available • $2,000 

Update on last Quality project reported: 

1st Quarter 2019 

(3) First Aide Injuries resulting in zero days away from work

(2) Reportable Injuries

Still have $2,000 of CARE Funds left to use

What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects? 

NA 

What issues have come up in your department relating to Quality? 

Current report date 

to Board Quality: 

04/17/19 

Last report date to 

Board Quality: 

01/09/19 

Due to multiple departments being involved in the employee injury process (Employees, Department Managers, Admitting, 

Billing, Emergency Department, Providers, Medical Records, Infection Control and Employee Health) I see a need to review 

currently policies and practices and do some education and training do to incomplete and untimely filing of claims. 

PLAN: What plan was implemented to address those issues? 

First, I personally plan to review our current policy and procedures, working with our insurance to be sure our current 

practices are up to date. 

I would then like to hold a meeting with all involved in the comp process to obtain feedback on how we could better the 

process or troubleshoot any problems that arise. 

Lastly, I will retrain manager of the updated policy and be available to present at department specific meetings. 

03/27/2019 

Attachment G
Worker's Comp













Board Quality Departmental Report Template 
Last Quality project reported: 

Update on last Quality project reported: 

What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects? 

What issues have come up in your department relating to Quality? 

PLAN: What plan was implemented to address those issues? 

DO: How did the implementation of that plan go? 

STUDY: What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield? 

ACT: What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation? 

1 01/28/2019

Current report date 
to Board Quality: 

Last report date to 
Board Quality: 

Attachment H
Infection Control



Upcoming Quality Items: Quality Related Goals for the Department: 

Data/Graphics supporting project outcomes: 

2 01/28/2019



MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS 

Page 1 of 4, with attachment 
Application for Inspection of Public Records MMH585 

DEFINITIONS: 

"Person" includes any natural person, corporation, partnership, firm or association. 

"Public records" includes any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the 
business of Mayers Memorial Hospital District prepared, owned, used or retained by the District 
regardless of physical form or characteristics. 

"Writing" means handwriting, typewriting, printing, electronic communications, copying, 
photographing, and every other means of recording upon any form of communication or 
representation, including letters, words, pictures, sounds, or symbols, or combination thereof, 
and all papers, maps, magnetic or paper tapes, photographic films and prints, and other 
documents. 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the Board of Directors of Mayers Memorial Hospital District to encourage 
public participation in the governing process and to provide reasonable accessibility to all public 
records except those documents that are exempt from disclosure by express provisions of law or 
considered confidential or privileged under the law. 

The following Guidelines and procedures shall govern the accessibility for inspection and 
copying of all of the public records of Mayers Memorial Hospital District. These guidelines are 
to be administered by the Chief Executive Officer of the District. 

Certain requirements of law must be observed relating to disclosure of records and to the 
protection of the confidentiality of records. These Guidelines set forth the general rules contained 
in such laws. 

Questions of Interpretation 
In case of any question as to the accessibility of the records of the District under this policy, 
records should not be made accessible to the public until such question has been determined by 
the Chief Executive Officer of the District. The decision of such officer is final unless overruled 
by the Board of Directors. 

Attachment I
Policies



Access to Public Records 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
The District shall justify the withholding of any record by demonstrating that the record 
requested and withheld is exempt under policy, or that on the facts of the particular case, the 
public interest served by not making the record public outweighs the public interest served by 
the disclosure of such record. 
 
 
In the case of any denial of an Application for Inspection or Copying of Records, the District 
shall notify the applicant of the decision to deny the application for records and shall set forth the 
names and positions of each person responsible for the denial of the request. 
 
Following Procedures for Inspection and Copying: 
The Procedures referred to shall be followed in all of their specifics at all times. Records of 
inspections shall be accurately maintained. 
 
Records Subject to Inspection 
All public records of the District are subject to inspection pursuant to this policy except as 
follows: 

 Records set forth hereinafter as records subject to inspection only withauthorization; 
 Records NOT SUBJECT to inspection (unless by Court order); or 
 Records that may be withheld by exercise of discretion. 

 
Waiver of Exemption 
If the District discloses a public record that is otherwise exempt from disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act, the disclosure may constitute a waiver of the exemption 
otherwise applicable to such record. 
 
Records Subject to Inspection Only with Authorization 
Any records relating to clients of the District (including but not limited to the client's records of 
admission and discharge, medical treatment, diagnosis and other care and services) shall only be 
made available for inspection and/or copying under the following conditions: 

 Upon presentation of a written authorization therefore signed by an adult client, by the 
guardian or conservator of his person or estate, or, in the case of a minor, by a parent or 
guardian of such minor, or by the personal representative or an heir of a deceased patient 
or client, and then only upon the presentation of the same by such person above-named or 
an attorney-at-law representing such person. 

 Upon presentation of a written order therefore issued by a Court of the State of California 
or of the United States of America (see reference to Subpoena Duces Tecum hereinafter) 
that specifically commands the District to disclose specified records. 

 
Records Not Subject to Inspection (Unless by Court Order) 
The following Records of the District are not subject to inspection by any person without a 
written order therefore issued by a Court of the State of California or of the United States of 
America (see reference to Subpoena Duces Tecum hereinafter): 

 Records pertaining to pending litigation to which the District is a party, or to claims made 
pursuant to Division 3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title I of the Government 



Access to Public Records 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Code of California, until such litigation or claim has been finally adjudicated or otherwise 
settled. 

 Personnel, medical or similar files of non-clients, the disclosure of which would 
constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy of the individual or individuals 
concerned.  

 Records of complaints to or investigations conducted by, or investigatory or security files 
compiled by the District for correctional, law enforcement or licensing purposes.  

 Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data used to administer a licensing 
examination, examination for employment or academic examination.   

 The contents of real estate appraisals, engineering or feasibility estimates and evaluations 
made for or by the District relative to the acquisition of property, or to prospective public 
supply and construction contracts, until such time as all of the property has been acquired 
and all contract agreements obtained. 

 Confidential documents relating to trade secrets of the District.  Trade secrets are of 
unique value to the District, are important to the functioning of District plans and are 
considered to be confidential documents.  

 Records the disclosure of which is exempted or prohibited pursuant to provisions of 
federal or state law, including, but not limited to, provisions of the Evidence Code of 
California relating to privilege. (Privileges are conditionally provided for all 
communications between lawyer and client, physician and patient and psychotherapist 
and patient).   

 Preliminary drafts, notes, or interdistrict, intradistrict or other memoranda, between 
districts, departments of the District, and/or other agencies, which are not retained by the 
District in the ordinary course of business, and provided that the public interest in 
withholding such records outweighs the public interest in disclosure.   

 Records in the custody of or maintained by legal counsel to the District. 
 Statements of personal worth or personal financial data required by any licensing agency 

and filed by an applicant with the licensing agency to establish his or her personal 
qualifications for the license, certificate or permit applied for.   

 Records of state agencies related to activities governed by Articles 2.6, 2.8, and 2.91 of 
Chapter 7 of Part 3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, pertaining to 
MediCal provider contracting, which reveal the special negotiator's deliberative 
processes, discussions, communications, or any other portion of the negotiations with 
providers of healthcare services, impressions, opinions, recommendations, meeting 
minutes, research, work product, theories, or strategy, or that provide instruction, advice 
or training to employees.   

 Employment contracts between the District and any public official or public employee, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 6254.8.  

 Government Code SS6254.6 states that collection of private industry wage data for salary 
purposes, when such data is supplied under contract by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, 
shall remain confidential and the identity of the employers shall not be open to the public.   

 Government Code SS6254.9 states that computer software developed by the District is 
not, in itself a public record. The District may sell, lease, or license the software for 
commercial or noncommercial use. Any computer software that might be developed by 



Access to Public Records 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

the District is entitled to copyright protection and need not be disclosed as a public 
record. This Section also provides, however, that information stored in a computer does 
not necessarily become confidential because of this Section. 

 Any other records of the District that are not required to be disclosed pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act or other applicable statute as such statues may be amended 
from time to time. 

 
Discretionary Withholding of Records 
In addition to the limitations upon disclosure of records set forth in this policy, the District may, 
in its discretion, withhold inspection of any record or writing when the District determines that 
on the facts of the particular case the public interest served by not making the record public 
clearly outweighs the public interest served by disclosure of the record . Such discretion shall be 
exercised by the District by and through the Chief Executive Officer, whose decision shall be 
final unless overruled by the Board of Directors. 
 
Compliance with Subpoena Duces Tecum 
Upon receipt, the Subpoena Duces Tecum (a notice to appear and to bring records, or to produce 
records without appearance) should be forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer. While a  
Subpoena Duces Tecum is issued by a court, it is not an order of the court declaring that the 
particular records are subject to disclosure. Such records may still be subject to protection 
against disclosure by reason of the existence of a privilege or other legal excuse. Therefore, 
receipt of such a subpoena does not permit disclosure of records in and of itself and the 
following rules should be followed: 

 Subpoena in action where District is a party:  Immediately consult with legal counsel 
representing the District as to the proper response. 

 Subpoena in other actions:  If the records sought to be discovered (which are ordered to 
be produced) fall within one of the categories above, consult with the District's counsel 
prior to responding to the subpoena.  

 If the records sought to be discovered are those that can be inspected, it is sufficient 
compliance with the subpoena (if it seeks only records and does not specify that 
"testimony" or "examination upon such records" will be required) to deliver a copy by 
mail or otherwise, following the procedure set forth in Form MMH585 attached hereto.  

 If only a portion of the records may be disclosed or inspected:  If only portions of any 
requested records may be disclosed or inspected, the disclosable portions should be 
segregated from the non-disclosable portions, and the segregated non-disclosable portions 
should be withheld unless and until a court orders their production. 

 
 
REFERENCES: 
ACHD/Alpha Fund policy Access to Public Records 
Beach Cities Health District 
 
APPROVALS: 
BOD: 



MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR – INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
Page 1 of 3 
 
Job Description: MMHD Individual Board Member 
 
The Fundamental Duty of Oversight 
The board is both responsible and liable for Mayers Memorial Hospital District (MMHD). The 
MMHD board and the law require every board member to follow the rule of the reasonably 
prudent person and the principle of good faith, and in accordance with the Brown Act, District 
Law, and all other applicable local, state and federal laws. 
 
The board must supervise and direct its own officers and govern the District’s efforts in carrying 
out its mission. The duties of care, loyalty, and obedience describe the manner in which the 
directors are required to carry out their fundamental duty of oversight. 
 
Duty of Care 
Duty of Care requires board members to have knowledge of all reasonably available and 
pertinent information before taking action. The board member must act in good faith, with the 
care of an ordinarily prudent businessperson in similar circumstances, and in a manner he or she 
reasonable believes to be in the best interest of the District. 
 
Duty of Loyalty 
Duty of Loyalty requires board members to candidly discharge their duties in a manner designed 
to benefit only the District, not the individual interests of the board member. It incorporates the 
duty to disclose situation that may present a potential for conflict with the District’s mission, as 
well as a duty to avoid competition with the District. 
 
Duty of Obedience 
Duty of Obedience requires board members to ensure that the District’s decisions and activities 
adhere to its fundamental corporate purpose and charitable mission, as stated in its articles of 
incorporation and bylaws. 
 
Each board member is also entrusted with individual responsibilities as a part of his or her board 
membership. The obligations of board service are considerable; they extend well beyond the 
basic expectation of attending meetings or participating in hospital events. Individual board 
members are expected to meet higher standards of personal conduct on behalf of the District than 
what is usually expected of other types of community volunteers. 
 



BOD Individual Job Description 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Yet, despite all of these “special” responsibilities, board members as individuals have no special 
privileges, prerogatives, or authority. They must meet in formal sessions to negotiate and make 
District decisions. 
 
A clear statement of individual board member responsibilities adapted to the District’s needs and 
circumstances can serve at least two purposes: 

 It can help with the process of recruiting new board members by clarifying expectations 
before candidates accept nomination. 

 It can provide criteria by which the committee responsible for identifying and recruiting 
prospective nominees can review the performance of incumbents who are eligible for 
reelection. 

 
General Expectations 
Prospective and incumbent board members should commit themselves with regards to the 
following: 

 Demonstrate commitment to Mayers Memorial Hospital District’s mission/vision/values. 
 Know and understand the District’s bylaws, board policies, goals, programs, services, 

history, strengths, and needs. 
 Perform the duties of board membership responsibly and conform to the level of 

competence expected from board members as outlined in the duties of care, loyalty, and 
obedience. 

 Prepare for the policy discussions and decision making required for governance 
excellence within the District. 

 Serve in leadership positions and undertake special assignments willingly and 
enthusiastically. 

 Suggest possible nominees to the board who are individuals of achievement and 
distinction and who can make significant contributions to the work of the board and the 
District’s progress. 

 Avoid prejudiced judgments on the basis of information received from individuals and 
urge those with grievances to follow established policies and procedures through their 
supervisors (all matters of potential significance should be called to the attention of the 
CEO and the board’s elected leader as appropriate). 

 Avoid asking for special favors of the staff, including special requests for extensive 
information, without prior consultation with the CEO, board, or appropriate committee 
chairperson. 

 Know the difference between the board’s role and the role of the CEO. 
 Counsel the CEO as appropriate and support him or her through difficult relationships 

with groups or individuals. 
 Consider an annual gift according to personal means. 
 Assist the development committees or affiliated foundation and staff by implementing 

fundraising strategies through personal influence with others (e.g., corporations, 
individuals, and foundations). 

 Participate annually in educational opportunities to remain current on changing trends 
and issues affecting governance. 

 



BOD Individual Job Description 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Meetings 
Under the Brown Act, the board only exists, in both a legal and functional sense, when it meets. 
Consequently, board meetings are the center of governance. The ways they are planned and 
conducted – in addition to the dynamics that emerge in them – significantly influence the quality 
of governance. Therefore, individual board members are expected to: 

 Prepare for board and committee meetings, including appropriate organizational 
activities. 

 Participate in board and committee meetings with the forethought, courtesy, critical 
thinking and analyses, and attention to results. 

 Ask timely and substantive questions at board and committee meetings consistent with 
the board member’s conscience and convictions, while at the same time supporting the 
majority decision on issues decided by the board. 

 Maintain confidentiality of the board’s closed sessions, and speak for the board or 
District only when authorized to do so. 

 Suggest agenda items periodically for board and committee meetings to ensure that 
significant, policy-related matters are addressed.  

 
Conflict of Interest 
Conflict of interest, confidentiality, disclosure – these concepts figure prominently in the 
understanding of governance responsibilities. They do not tell a board, or an individual director, 
how to govern; rather, they imply a code of conduct and ethical behavior. In order to prevent 
using the power, position, or information derived from their situations to influence organizational 
activities and decisions, individual board members must adhere to the Mayers Memorial Hospital 
District policy covering Conflict of Interest.  
 
 
REFERENCES: 
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/ 
 
http://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/Resources-Section/Open-Government/Ralph-M-
Brown-Act-11-2-15.aspx 
 
Mayers Memorial Hospital District Conflict of Interest Policy  
 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: Board Quality Committee (Kerns/Brubaker): 6/8/2010 
BOARD APPROVAL: Regular Board Meeting 7/28/10  
 
 



 
MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
BOARD POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

 
 
 
 
POLICY:  
It is the policy of MMHD to annually evaluate the work performance of the Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO).  
 
The evaluation will be given at the September board meeting to follow fiscal year end, and so that all 
board members participating in the evaluation will have had a full year of interacting with and 
observing the CEO’s performance.  
 
Compensation of the CEO will be determined after completion of the evaluation. Any increase in 
compensation will be effective beginning with the pay period following completion of the annual 
CEO performance evaluation.  
 
Although the evaluation will be facilitated by the Board Quality Committee or a special committee 
appointed by the board chairperson, the entire board will participate in the evaluation process.  
 
PROCEDURE:  
The process begins with a review of the current job description to determine accuracy and 
appropriateness. The team next develops an evaluation checklist based on the work plan and chief 
executive officer objectives. Respondents will be asked to rate the CEO’s performance utilizing the 
evaluation checklist.  
 
The team mails the checklist to all board members with the request that the evaluation form be 
completed within ten days and returned to board chairperson. Constructive criticism from board 
members should be specific so that the CEO may take appropriate corrective action.  
A copy of the evaluation checklist is also provided to the CEO with the request to complete a self-
evaluation and recommend performance objectives for the coming year. The form competed by the 
CEO will not be included in the board’s compilation of results. 
 
When the board members have returned the evaluation forms, the chairperson of the board makes up 
a composite checklist, which by line item indicates the number of responses for each rating.  
 
Next, the full board meets, without the CEO present, to review the composite evaluation. The board 
must reach consensus on an evaluation for each item in the checklist.  
 
The board will submit a copy of composite evaluation to CEO prior to full board evaluation. Then, 
the full board meets with the CEO to present the full board’s conclusions about the evaluation. 
Should the CEO be in serious disagreement with part or all of the evaluation, the right to respond to 



CEO Performance Evaluation 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
the full board must be available. Such a response should lead to a dialogue in which the problem area 
can be resolved in a candid and professional way.  
 
Both the CEO and the board chairperson should sign the final agreed upon evaluation. A copy of the 
evaluation is given to the CEO, and the original evaluation is to be kept on file by the board in safe 
deposit box and to be passed on to the next board chairperson. A copy of the evaluation is not kept in 
the personnel office.  
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW:  
Board Quality Committee (Kerns/Knoch) - 7/20/09 
 


	Date1_af_date: 4/11/19
	Date2_af_date: 8/15/18
	Last Quality project reported Update on last Quality project reported: 1. We have had 100% compliance with utilizing the shower schedule.2. The IT specialist was unable to work out all the issues that still continue regarding "Error, medication does not match". 
	What successes have you seen based on the outcome of previous Quality projects: 1. A more efficient schedule for patient's to anticipate when their showers will be.  This has been effective for the employees as well.
	What issues have come up in your department relating to quality: 1. Short-staffed, Increased use of travelers. Lack of vested interest. 2. State Survey-Missed orders3. State Survey-Noncompliance of "Reassessment of pain".
	Last Quality project reported: 1. Adopting a shower schedule.2. Barcode Scanning
	Upcoming Quality Items: Refining use of Relias and orientation process.
	Quality Related Goals for the department: Meeting compliance from issues related to State Survey. 
	Name: Theresa Overton
	Department: Acute
	What plan was implemented to address those issues: 1. HR and administration created a hire bonus program.2. Adopted the program of Bedside Reporting each shift.3. Purchased timers to be placed on the computers.
	How did the implementation of that plan go: 1. Successful implementation as evidenced by 3-new hires in Med/Surg. Orientation will be complete by mid June.2. Staff took time for the implementation and consistency of process. Live audits completed by Acute Lead and DON. 3. The timers have been a great tool for staff but at times staff forgets. Developed a tool to audit process. 
	What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield: 1. 3-new hires for Med/Surg2. Have 90% compliance with no missed orders and compliance of staff with use of timers.3. Quality review of data-Pain reassessment over 3 months is 70%
	What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation?: 1. Working with Relias for competency based orientation for new hires.2. Coaching and feedback for use of timers. Have identified inadequacies of timers and will assess for use friendly capabilities.  3. Continue to coach and educate staff/Registry for compliance.
	PLAN What plan was implemented to address those issues: When the staff is loading the washers they need to be watching for these things and putting them aside to pre treat before they go into the washer to be washed. They are pretty good about catching it before it goes into the washer if not they catch it before the dryer.
	DO How did the implementation of that plan go: So far its working and I also think that with everything being done by hand will help to inspect not only for stains, but for rips, holes etc. Also I have seen the stained items that come through firsthand and I have not seen them delivered to Fall river or the annex with stains so I think that they are catching them before they go out.  
	STUDY What kind of results did the implementation of the plan yield: In about 3 weeks time there is only a few things that haven't come clean after two washes.  
	ACT: What changes were made based on the results of the plan implementation?:  I have 3 different pre spotters that will work on just about every stain that comes through.  The real challenge sometimes is trying to figure out what the stain is in order to pretreat it, but we do have a all purpose spot cleaner that seems to work on most anything so far.


